
1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

June 27, 2023 

Pre-meeting – 3:30 p.m. (7th Floor) 

Meeting – 4:00 p.m. (Council Chambers) 
 



2 

 

Table of Contents 
MINUTES MAY 2023 ..................................................................................................................................................... 3 

AGENDA................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

CASE NO. 1 251 JOHNSTON ST SE ........................................................................................................................... 9 

PICTURE .................................................................................................................................................................. 10 
PICTURE .................................................................................................................................................................. 11 
SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

CASE NO. 2 1109 6TH AV SE ................................................................................................................................... 13 

SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

CASE NO. 3 212 CHURCH ST NW .......................................................................................................................... 15 

SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 16 
SURVEY PG 2............................................................................................................................................................ 17 

CASE NO. 4 PARCEL 03-04-19-1-028-001.000 ....................................................................................................... 18 

CASE NO. 5 2409 BELTLINE RD. ............................................................................................................................ 19 

CASE NO. 6 2800 B SPRING AV SW ....................................................................................................................... 20 

VARIANCE REQUEST ................................................................................................................................................ 21 
LETTER ..................................................................................................................................................................... 22 
LETTER PG 2 ............................................................................................................................................................. 23 
SITE PLAN ................................................................................................................................................................ 24 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

Minutes May 2023 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:     Delayne Dean, Mr. Brad Townson, Mr. Chester Ayers, 

        Rev. George Allen 

 

SUPERNUMERARIES:       None present 

 

COPIED TO:           Mr. J. Michael Maurer, Mr. Mark McCurry 

 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:       Mrs. Ruth Priest, Asst. City Attorney 

        Mr. Lee Terry, Planning Department 

        Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 

 

Chair, Delayne Dean called the meeting to order at 4:07 p.m. in the council chambers on the first 

floor at City Hall.   

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, called the roll. 

 

The minutes from the February 2023 meeting were approved with corrections made. Also, the 

minutes from March 2023 was approved. Mr. Brad Townson motioned to approve the minutes. 

Mr. Chester Ayers seconded the motion. On a voice vote, the motion carried. There were no 

minutes for April 2023. 

 

 

CASE NO. 1  

 

Application and appeal of S & S Liquor for a 9 inch height variance from Section 

25-77 (e) (3) in order to install a sign located at 1315 6th Av SE. The property is 

located in a R-D Redevelopment District. 
 

Mr. Michael Rogers presented this case to the Board. Representing Singi Reddy 

who is doing business as A & S Liquors located at 1315 6th Av SE. 

 

Mr. Rogers stated a request for a variance of 9 inches for the height of an existing 

sign, which was installed in the year 2005, was installed 9 inches higher than it 

should have been at a height of 22.9 feet. 

 

Mr. Rogers stated it would cost several thousand dollars to lower the sign 9 inches 

and still be able to use the sign. 

 

Mr. Rogers stated the sign has a 23-foot setback. 

 

Mr. Rogers stated the sign is 10 inches below the top edge of the brick on one side. 



4 

 

Mr. Rogers stated the scope of the work is to remove the lettering, clean it and re-

letter and replace the sign face. 

 

Chair Dean asked for any questions from the Board or the public, there were no 

comments. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Lee Terry, Planning Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Brad Townsend motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George 

Allen seconded the motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried with an 

unanimous vote. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of Alicia Hicks for a determination as a use permitted on 

appeal as allowed in Section 25-95 and defined in Article IV, as amended and 

adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance in order to operate a Group Day Care Facility 

operating from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. located at 1115 Betty St SW. The property is 

located in a R-2 Single Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

Ms. Alicia Hicks presented this case to the Board. Ms. Hicks stated her name was 

Alcia Hicks and her address was 1115 Betty St. SW. Ms. Hicks stated she would 

like to have an in home daycare operating from 5:00 a.m. until 5:30 p.m. 

 

Chair Dean asked Ms. Hicks to amend her application showing she is requesting a 

Group Daycare and a Daycare because of the hours she will be operational. 

 

Ms. Hicks understood and amended the application. 

 

Chair Dean explained to Ms. Hicks that the definition of a daycare states only 6 

children are allowed from the hours of 5:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m. and after 2:00 p.m. 

to 7:00 p.m. 12 children are allowed. 

 

Chair Dean verified that Ms. Hicks understood these rules and Ms. Hicks agreed in 

the affirmative. 

 

Chair Dean asked for questions from the Board. 

 



5 

 

Mr. Brad Townsend asked Ms. Hicks if she already had clients and how many, if 

so. 

 

Ms. Hicks stated she had three clients already lined up. 

 

Mr. Brad Townsend asked if any of the children were coming from Austin Middle 

School. Ms. Hicks replied yes and that they were younger students. 

 

Mr. Brad Townsend stated he had looked at photos on-line and that the driveway at 

her residence seemed wide and parking two cars should not be a problem, Ms. 

Hicks agreed. 

 

Mr. Brad Townsend stated to Ms. Hicks, he was verifying that there would be 

enough space to drop the children off and to pick them the children up. Ms. Hick 

understood. 

 

Chair Dean stated that emails had been received from neighbors on the street who 

are concerned that the rezoning was taking place. 

 

Chair Dean explained that the approval is strictly for Ms. Hicks and not for the 

residence. In the event Ms. Hicks was to move, a business could not operate from 

the residence without getting approval from the Board of Zoning Adjustment. 

 

Chair Dean stated the emails also stated concerns about Betty Street and the 

amount of traffic that traveled on that street. 

 

Chair Dean stated to Ms. Hicks to reiterate to her clients to be careful when pulling 

in and out of the driveway. 

 

Mr. Brad Townsend asked Ms. Hicks if she would have any employees. Ms. Hicks 

stated she would have one employee. 

 

Chair Dean verified with Me. Bob Sims, Building Department, if having an 

employee was allowable. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, stated it was allowable because she has to 

have backup for a daycare. 

 

Chair Dean asked for further questions from the Board or the public. 

 



6 

 

There were no comments. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Lee Terry, Planning Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Chester Ayers motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen 

seconded the motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried with an unanimous 

vote. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 4:17p.m. 

 

_________________________    

Delayne Dean, Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 

 

AGENDA  

June 2023 

The Board of Zoning Adjustment of the City of Decatur will hold a public meeting 

in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON THE FIRST FLOOR OF City Hall, 402 Lee 

Street NE, on Tuesday, June 27, 2023 at 4:00 p.m. And, also broadcast live on City 

of Decatur You Tube Channel at https://www.youtube.com/c/Cityof DecaturAl for 

the purpose of hearing the following applications and appeals at which time all 

interested parties are requested to the be present and will be given an opportunity 

to be heard. Submit questions via email at bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

 

Application and appeal of Encore Rehabilitation, Inc. for a 72 square foot area 

variance from Section 25-77 (c)(3) and a 25 foot setback variance from Section 25-

78 in order to install a  sign located at 251 Johnston St SE. The property is located 

in a B-5 Central Business District. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of O’Reilly Automotive Stores, Inc. for a 15 foot setback 

variance and a 10 foot height variance from Section 25-77 ( e ) (3) in order to 

relocate the existing pole sign which has been repeatedly hit by motorists when 

entering and existing the drive lane located at the North end of the lot. The 

property is located at 1109 6th Ave SE, in a B-2 General Business Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of Frances Tate, Ceota Nonprofit, for a 12 foot rear setback 

from Section 25.10.10 (2) (d) and an 8 foot side yard setback from Section 25-14 

in order to place the home of Judge Horton in old Decatur as part of a museum, 

located at 212 Church St. NW. The property is located in a R-3 Single Family 

Zoning Residential Zoning District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov


8 

 

CASE NO. 4 

 

Application and appeal of DH Morris Development, LLC for a 1000 square foot 

area variance from Section 25-10.11 (2) (a) in order to build three townhomes on 

parcel # 03-04-19-1-028-001.000. The property is located in a R-4 Multifamily 

Residential Zoning District. 

 

 CASE NO. 5 

 

Application and appeal of K.L. Enterprises, for a use permitted on appeal, from 

Section 25-12 in order to build an apartment complex located at 2409 Beltline Rd. 

SW. This request is conditional that the property is approved to be rezoned to an 

R-4 Multifamily Residential Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 6 

 

Application and appeal of Murphy Oil USA, Inc. for the following variances: 

 

 Allow placement of the canopy in the 35 foot setback from Section 25-6. 

 Allow a variance from the dumpster and accessory setback requirement 

from Section 25-163. 

 Allow a variance from the off-street parking requirement and allow the 

use of Wal-Mart/Murphy parking agreement. 

 

The property is located at 2800 E Spring Av. SW in a M-1A Expressway 

Commercial District. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



9 

 

  
 

 

CASE NO. 1 251 JOHNSTON ST SE 



10 

 

 
 

 

PICTURE 



11 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PICTURE 



12 

 

 
 

SURVEY 



13 

 

 
 

 

CASE NO. 2 1109 6TH AV SE 



14 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SURVEY 



15 

 

 
 

 

CASE NO. 3 212 CHURCH ST NW 



16 

 

 
 

 

SURVEY 



17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

SURVEY PG 2 



18 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 4 PARCEL 03-04-19-1-028-001.000 



19 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 5 2409 BELTLINE RD. 



20 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 6 2800 B SPRING AV SW 



21 

 

 
 

 

 

VARIANCE REQUEST 



22 

 

 
 

 

 

 

LETTER 



23 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LETTER PG 2 



24 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SITE PLAN 


